ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE COMMUNI TY AND REG ONAL AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
January 28, 2010
3:47 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Linda Menard

Senat or Al bert Kookesh

Senat or Joe Thomms, Vice Chair
Senator Donald d son, Chair

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Hollis French
OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
SENATOR DENNI S EGAN

COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 43
"An Act adding a second verse to the official Al aska state
song. "

MOVED SB 43 QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO 212
"An  Act authorizing nunicipalities to designate energy
i nprovenents areas and to establish energy inprovenents prograns
and relating to those prograns.”

HEARD AND HELD

Fai r banks Annexation Report fromthe Local Boundary Conmi ssion
MATERI ALS DI STRI BUTED;, HEARI NG REQUESTED

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 43

SHORT TI TLE. SECOND VERSE OF ALASKA' S STATE SONG
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) MENARD

01/ 21/ 09 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 9/ 09

01/ 21/ 09 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 21/ 09 (S) CRA, STA

01/ 28/ 10 (S) CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -1- January 28, 2010



BILL: SB 212
SHORT TI TLE: MUNI Cl PAL ENERGY | MPROVEMENTS PROGRAM
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) EGAN

01/ 19/ 10 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 8/ 10

01/ 19/ 10 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 10 (S) CRA, FIN

01/ 28/ 10 (S) CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR LI NDA MENARD

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of SB 43.

CONSTANCE DAVI S

Representing hersel f

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported SB 43.

CONSTANCE MUNRO

Representing herself and Al aska Native Sisterhood Canp Two
Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported SB 43.

MARI E DARLI N

Representing herself

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported SB 43.

SENATOR DENNI S EGAN

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported SB 43 and sponsor of SB 212.

ALI DA BUS

Ai de to Senator Egan

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Present to answer questions on SB 212.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

SENATE CRA COWM TTEE - 2- January 28, 2010



3:47:15 PM

CHAIR DONALD OLSON called the Senate Community and Regional
Affairs Standing Conmttee neeting to order at 3:47 p.m
Senat ors Kookesh, Menard, Thomas and O son were present at the
call to order.

CHAI R OLSON said the boundary decision on annexation by the Cty
of Fairbanks was provided to the comittee nenbers for
i nformational purposes only.

SB  43- SECOND VERSE OF ALASKA'S STATE SONG

3:48: 25 PM
CHAI R OLSON announced the first order of business to cone before
the commttee would be SB 43.

SENATOR MENARD, sponsor of SB 43, said the bill would add an
official second verse to the Al aska Flag Song. SB 43 has a zero
fiscal note and will inplenment sonething many have wanted for
years. She explained that the Alaska Flag Song, witten by
Juneau resident, Marie Drake, was adopted by the territorial
| egislature in 1955. Having just had the 50th anniversary of
statehood, this would be the appropriate tinme to add the second
verse. Passing SB 43 would be an overdue honor to Carol Beery
Davis, who wote the second verse out of love for Alaska and its
Native population in 1987, and pay homage to Benny Benson, who
designed the Al aska state fl ag.

3:52:26 PM

CONSTANCE DAVI S, daughter of Carol Beery Davis and Trevor Davis,
spoke in support of SB 43. She said her nother [Carol Beery
Davis] came to Juneau in 1920, worked as the organ player for
silent novies, and becane close friends with Elinor Dusenbury
and Marie Drake, secretary to the Comm ssioner of Education. In
1926, the Governor and the American Legion started a contest for
school children to create a flag. After choosing the flag, the
Conmmi ssi oner of Education said school children should receive a
flag and a copy of the Flag Act. Ms. Drake wote a jingle that
she thought woul d be nore appropriate for children than the Flag
Act. Ms. Constance Davis said that recognition of Al aska Natives
and Benny Benson, who designed the flag, were left out of the
poem at that tinme. M. Drake travelled around the state to
introduce the poem to children; the poem was officially
recognized by the Legislature in 1955. M. Constance Davis
expl ained that M. Dusenbury, who had noved back to Omaha but

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 3- January 28, 2010



was very honesick for Haines, Alaska, wote the nusic to
acconpany the poem

3:54: 58 PM

M5. CONSTANCE DAVI S explained that the second verse recognizes
Al aska Natives, especially Benny Benson, the beauty of the |and
and the progress of Alaska and Al askans. She explained that the
second verse is not a rewite of the song, but an addition. She
noted that not all newconers learn the song anynore and she
would like the University of Al aska, Fairbanks, who owns the
copyright, to print sheet nusic again, with both verses.

SENATOR MENARD pointed out that Fran U ner, former Mayor of
Juneau, and former Lieutenant Governor, has expressed support
for the second verse, as has the University of Al aska.

M5. DAVIS said the Alaska Youth Choir and conductor, M ssouri
Snyth, have been singing the second verse when travelling to
ot her countri es.

CHAI R OLSON asked for clarification that Marie Drake wote the
poem and Elinor Dusenbury wote the song.

M5. CONSTANCE DAVIS replied yes and explained that they worked
t oget her though Ms. Dusenbury was in Oraha.

3:58:47 PM

M5. CONSTANCE DAVIS said people were talking about a second
verse when a friend approached her 95 year old nother [Caro
Beery Davis,] who stayed up all night working on it. The second
verse was Carol Beery Davis' last gift to the state.

CHAI R OLSON asked if Carol Beery Davis was 95 years old in 1987
when she wote the second verse.

M5. DAVIS replied yes.
CHAI R OLSON recogni zed Senator Egan as being in the room

3:59:59 PM
CHAI R OLSON opened public testinony.

CONSTANCE ~ MUNROQ, representing herself and Alaska Native
Si sterhood Canp Two, said as a new resident of Al aska, the first
| egislative activity she attended was the singing of the Al aska
Flag Song in 1971. She was "a little stunned" and remarked that
she would not sing the song wuntil Alaska Natives were

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -4- January 28, 2010



recogni zed. Carol Berry Davis suggested a contest should be run
for a second verse. The Native Coalition of Legislators decided
a second verse should be a gift from a non-native, not the
product of a contest.

4.:02: 07 PM

M5. MUNRO expl ai ned that when she had to | eave Alaska in 1985 or
86, she told Carol Beery Davis that she regretted not achieving
the gifting of a second verse to Alaska Natives. Carol Beery
Davis called Ms. Munro the next norning and said she had a gift
[the second verse for the state song.] Menbers of the Al aska
Nati ve Brotherhood and Sisterhood and Al aska Native |egislators
| ooked at the second verse. Sone testified the first tine this
pi ece of |legislature was proposed [HB 45 in 2003]. She hopes
this legislative body will take the | ead and get SB 43 through.

4:04: 37 PM

MARI E DARLIN, representing herself, said that though it has been
tried before, she was glad to see the second verse m ght
actually becone law. She feels it really deserves to be
of ficial.

4:06: 22 PM

CHAI R OLSON asked if Senator Egan, as the first state Governor's
son, would like to say anything about the second verse being
added to the state song.

SENATOR EGAN said he was in full support of SB 43. He had tal ked
to fornmer Lieutenant Governor and former Juneau nmayor, Fran
U ner, about the second verse. The Juneau assenbly passed a
resolution in support of the second verse years ago.

CHAI R OLSON asked what Senator Egan's dad would say about the
second verse being added to the state song.

SENATOR EGAN said he would be in favor of it and that his
not her, who is 95 years old, still sings the first verse every
day and is slowy |earning verse two.

4:08:41 PM

SENATOR KOOKESH recognized M. Mnro's dedication over the
years. He said he is an Alaska Native and a lifelong resident
and was di sappointed to see this legislation fail previously. He
was a nmenber of the House and then the Senate when majorities in
those bodies would not adopt a bill with the words "Alaska
Native" or the word "tribe." For the first tinme in history, two
bills were passed in 2009 with the words "tribe" and "Al aska

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -5- January 28, 2010



Native." He said the state seal has no depiction of an Al aska
Native. This is a great step in the right direction and he hoped
SB 43 woul d pass.

SENATOR THOVAS noved to report SB 43 from committee wth
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons.

4:10: 41 PM
At Ease

4:12:15 PM
CHAI R OLSON said the noti on needed to be restated.

SENATOR THOMAS noved to report SB 43 to the next commttee of
referral with individual recommendations and a zero fiscal note.
W thout objection, it was so ordered.

FAI RBANKS ANNEXATI ON, LEGQ SLATI VE REVI EW

4:12: 34 PM
SENATOR THOVAS requested that the Senate Comunity and Regi ona
Affairs comittee hold hearings on the | ocal boundary

commi ssion's Decenber 10th, 2009 approval of the annexation of
several parcels of property in the Fairbanks area.

SB 212- MUNI CI PAL ENERGY | MPROVEMENTS PROGRAM

4:13:18 PM
CHAI R OLSON announced the consi derati on of SB 212.

SENATOR EGAN, sponsor of SB 212, said the bill creates jobs and
nore sustainable communities and nmakes buildings nore energy
efficient. It is an innovative financing nmechani sm designed to
accelerate the energy retrofits of Al aska's hones and comrerci a
bui | di ngs. He expl ai ned that property owners borrow noney from a
newl y established nunicipal financing district to finance energy
retrofits, including efficiency mneasures and mcro-renewable
energy. The borrower repays over 20 years through an annual
special tax on a mnunicipality's property tax bill. This
financing nodel has been successful in 16 other states and
numerous counties. It is an option only; SB 212 gives power to
the nmunicipalities to opt in or out.

SENATOR KOCOKESH asked if any noney would be available for the

program if a nmunicipality chose to participate but the district
did not issue a bond.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 6- January 28, 2010



SENATOR EGAN replied that SB 212 gives nunicipalities a
mechani sm to opt in should the nmunicipality choose to do so. He
said he is concerned about smaller communities and is assum ng
some of the revolving energy noney, funded through the
muni ci pality, could be used for this. The nmunicipality can set
the rates and the terns.

4:16:18 PM

SENATOR KOCKESH asked if the bond obligation stays with the hone
if, for exanple, a hone owner gets one of these |oans and then
sells the property.

SENATOR EGAN replied that it would be a part of the owner's
property tax. Just as nunicipalities require now, if the hone
was sold or foreclosed, the entire debt nust be paid.

SENATOR KOOKESH said the idea is innovative.

CHAIR OLSON said if sonmeone is in foreclosure, no bills will get
pai d.

SENATOR EGAN replied that if the municipality forecloses on the
buil ding, the municipality will sell it and collect the tax.

CHAI R OLSON asked if the municipality will get back what was put
into the property.

SENATOR EGAN said he believed so.

SENATOR MENARD asked if Senator Egan was trying to establish a
fund that nunicipalities can choose to be part of or not.

SENATOR EGAN replied that was correct.

SENATOR MENARD asked if the 16 other states with simlar | aws
have sim | ar weather conditions.

SENATOR EGAN said the 16 other states are all around the
country. Major comunities in California also have simlar
progr ans.

CHAI R OLSON asked about the success of those prograns.

SENATOR EGAN said according to the National Council of State
Legi sl atures, the prograns have been very successful.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -7- January 28, 2010



SENATOR KOOKESH asked how the bond obligation is disclosed if an
owner wants to sell his or her house. He thought there would
have to be a disclosure if an owner, who wants to sell, has
taken the loan, has nmade inprovenents on the house and is
obligated to make additional tax paynents to the municipality.

4:18:52 PM

SENATOR EGAN replied that it would be part of the nortgage.
There is sonme concern from | ending organi zati ons because it is
unprecedented. In other nunicipalities, additional tax is tacked
on to the owner's property tax bill.

SENATOR KOOKESH corrected Senator Egan that it is not on the
nortgage then, but on the tax bill.

SENATOR EGAN sai d absol utely.

SENATOR KOOKESH said the rmunicipality would show the home owner
and borrower of the |loan has a tax obligation to pay. So a buyer
would have to be infornmed about the tax obligation associated
wi th the hone.

SENATOR EGAN said that is correct, a new buyer would assune that
obl i gati on.

SENATOR THOVAS asked about Section (b) on page two: "In addition
the nmunicipality may require any other security for a |oan that
the municipality determnes to be reasonable" [Section 1 (b),
lines 10 and 11.] He asked what that |anguage inplied and what
ot her instrunments other states have used.

SENATOR EGAN said it would be up to the nunicipality to set the
terms, the anmpbunt and the interest rate. He assumed other
muni ci palities' requirenents varied.

4:21:54 PM

SENATOR THOVAS said he was curious what other collateral has
been considered by other nunicipalities.

SENATOR EGAN said he woul d get that information

CHAI R OLSON asked if anyone was opposed to SB 212.

SENATOR EGAN replied no

CHAI R OLSON asked if Senator Egan was anticipating opposition.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 8- January 28, 2010



SENATOR EGAN said he spoke with the state assessor who is not in
opposition to SB 212.

CHAI R OLSON asked about any rmunicipalities.

SENATOR EGAN said that the Gty and Borough of Juneau and the
Al aska Muni ci pal League have not opposed it.

SENATOR KOOKESH asked about Tamara Cook's [Legal Services
Di rector, Alaska State Legislature] st at enent t hat "t he
muni ci pality must provide an explanation of the program to
electric and natural gas utilities operating in the area of the
proposed program at Jleast 30 days before adopting the
ordi nance." He said he has never heard of having to tell a |ocal
utility that an ordinance is going to be adopted. He asked if
Senator Egan could find out why that would be necessary or if
the next commttee would possibly take that up.

4:23:39 PM

SENATOR KOOKESH said SB 212 is very innovative and coul d devel op
some energy savings in the state. Not everyone qualifies for the
energy program that started last year and this program could
pi ck up sonme of that sl ack.

CHAI R OLSON asked why it was not put in place years ago if it
was such a good bill. He was inpressed. [SB 212 was held in
comittee.]

4:24:52 PM

CHAIR OLSON thanked everyone for their comments and finding no
further business to cone before the commttee, adjourned the
neeting at 4:24 p.m

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -9- January 28, 2010



